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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

 
 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 
 
 Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
MPHJ TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENTS, LLC,  
a limited liability company, 
 
JAY MAC RUST, individually and as an officer 
of MPHJ TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENTS, 
LLC, 
 
FARNEY DANIELS, P.C., a professional 
corporation, and 
 
WILLIAM BRYAN FARNEY, individually and 
as managing shareholder of FARNEY DANIELS, 
P.C., 
 
 Defendants. 
 

 
 

 
Case No. ____________ 
 
COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION AND OTHER 
EQUITABLE RELIEF 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), for its Complaint alleges: 

 1. The FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission 

Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to obtain permanent injunctive relief, rescission or 

reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, disgorgement of ill-gotten 

monies, and other equitable relief for Defendants’ acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of 

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), in connection with the promotion, offering for sale, and sale of 

licenses relating to certain U.S. patents through a campaign of letters sent to thousands of small 

businesses located throughout the United States.   
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 

and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b). 

 3. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1), (b)(2), (c)(1), (c)(2), 

(c)(3), and (d), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b). 

PLAINTIFF 

 4. The FTC is an independent agency of the United States Government created by 

statute.  15 U.S.C. §§ 41–58.  The FTC enforces Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce.   

 5. The FTC is authorized to initiate federal district court proceedings, by its own 

attorneys, to enjoin violations of the FTC Act and to secure such equitable relief as may be 

appropriate in each case, including rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund 

of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies.  15 U.S.C. § 53(b). 

DEFENDANTS 

 6. Defendant MPHJ Technology Investments, LLC, (“MPHJ”) is a Delaware limited 

liability company whose sole member and manager uses the business address 510 North Valley 

Mills Drive, Suite 505, Waco, Texas, 76710.  MPHJ has 101 subsidiaries, each of which is a 

Delaware limited liability company.  MPHJ transacts or has transacted business in this district 

and throughout the United States.   

 7. Defendant Jay Mac Rust is the sole member and manager of MPHJ and the sole 

manager of each of MPHJ’s 101 subsidiaries.  At all times material to this Complaint, acting 

alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, had the authority to 
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control, or participated in the acts and practices of MPHJ, including the acts and practices set 

forth in this Complaint.  In connection with the matters alleged herein, Defendant Rust transacts 

or has transacted business in this district. 

 8. Defendant Farney Daniels, P.C., (“Farney Daniels”) is a Texas professional 

corporation with its principal place of business at 800 South Austin Avenue, Suite 200, 

Georgetown, Texas, 78626.  Farney Daniels transacts or has transacted business in this district.   

 9.  Defendant William Bryan Farney is the managing shareholder of Farney Daniels.   

At all times material to this Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, 

directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of 

Farney Daniels set forth in this Complaint.  Defendant Farney resides in this district and, in 

connection with the matters alleged herein, transacts or has transacted business in this district. 

COMMERCE 

 10. At all times material to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a substantial 

course of trade in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 

15 U.S.C. § 44. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

 11. The Defendants have violated Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 

15 U.S.C. § 45(a), through deceptive representations made in letters sent to small businesses 

located across the country.  As part of their campaign to sell licenses for a portfolio of U.S. 

patents, the Defendants falsely threatened thousands of small businesses with imminent patent 

infringement litigation when, in truth, the Defendants did not intend to take and did not take such 

action.  In addition, the Defendants falsely represented that substantial numbers of businesses 
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had responded to their letters by purchasing licenses from the Defendants when, at the time of 

the representations, the Defendants had not sold any licenses to letter recipients. 

DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

 12. Beginning in September 2012 and continuing through June 2013, the Defendants 

promoted, offered for sale, and sold licenses relating to certain U.S. patents through a campaign 

of letters sent to thousands of small businesses located in all fifty states and the District of 

Columbia.  The Defendants targeted their letters exclusively to businesses with fewer than one 

hundred employees. 

 13. In September 2012, MPHJ was assigned all right, title, and interest to four U.S. 

patents and one U.S. patent application.  The assignment concerned U.S. Patent Nos. 7,986,426; 

6,771,381; 7,477,410; and 6,185,590; and Application No. 13/182,857 (the “MPHJ Portfolio”).  

The patents comprising the MPHJ Portfolio relate to document scanning. 

 14. In September 2012, MPHJ also entered into written “Exclusive License 

Agreements” with at least 71 of its subsidiaries.  Each written license agreement assigned to a 

respective subsidiary a purportedly exclusive right to license the MPHJ Portfolio through a 

combination of a “Commercial Field” and a “Geographical Field.”  Under the terms of the 

September 2012 written license agreements, the “Geographical Field” assigned to each 

subsidiary was defined by a zip code ending in a particular digit; for example, one “Geographical 

Field” was defined as all zip codes ending in the digit “1.”   

 15. In principle, the September 2012 written license agreements between MPHJ and 

its subsidiaries would provide each subsidiary with a unique and exclusive grant of rights to 

conduct licensing activities.  In practice, however, numerous of the September 2012 written 
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license agreements provided MPHJ subsidiaries with rights that were not unique, as the same 

combinations of “Commercial Field” and “Geographical Field” were assigned to more than one 

subsidiary.  Moreover, in practice, letters to promote, offer for sale, and sell licenses that were 

sent in the name of MPHJ subsidiaries were in numerous instances sent without regard to the 

specific zip codes that each subsidiary was assigned in the “Geographical Fields” of their 

respective September 2012 written licensing agreements. 

 16. Each of the various written “Exclusive License Agreements” between MPHJ and 

its subsidiaries, and all amendments to such agreements, were signed by Defendant Rust on 

behalf of MPHJ, in Rust’s capacity as manager of MPHJ, and also by Defendant Rust on behalf 

of the applicable subsidiary, in Rust’s capacity as manager of the subsidiary. 

 17. In September 2012, MPHJ also entered into a written agreement with Farney 

Daniels.  The terms of the agreement provided that Farney Daniels “will represent MPHJ in 

connection with legal services related to enforcement, monetization, assertion, licensing, and/or 

sale” of the MPHJ Portfolio.  Under the terms of the agreement, Farney Daniels would not 

charge MPHJ hourly fees, but would instead be compensated with a percentage of any gross 

amounts that were paid to MPHJ or its subsidiaries by any licensees, alleged infringers, or 

purchasers of the MPHJ Portfolio that had been contacted or identified by Farney Daniels.  

Specifically, the written agreement provided that Farney Daniels would receive 40% of the gross 

amounts paid to MPHJ or its subsidiaries where Farney Daniels had sued or was “substantially 

engaged” with the entity making payment, and 30% of the gross amounts paid where Farney 

Daniels had not sued and was not “substantially engaged” with the entity making payment. 
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 18. The September 2012 written agreement between MPHJ and Farney Daniels was 

signed by Defendant Rust on behalf of MPHJ and by Defendant Farney on behalf of Farney 

Daniels.  The September 2012 written agreement between MPHJ and Farney Daniels identified 

Defendant Farney as “Managing Partner” of Farney Daniels.   

 19. In September 2012, the Defendants began their nationwide campaign to promote 

and sell licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio.  The Defendants’ campaign involved a series of up to 

three letters.  Each of the three letters was reviewed and edited by Defendant Farney, among 

others. 

 20. The first of the three letters (“First Letter”) involved in the Defendants’ campaign 

was sent to approximately 16,465 small businesses located in all fifty states and the District of 

Columbia.  Over the course of the campaign, the Defendants used different versions of the First 

Letter that involved a core of shared text.  Each version of the First Letter was sent to hundreds 

or thousands of small businesses nationwide.  One such First Letter, redacted to remove the 

name and address of the recipient, is attached as Exhibit A. 

 21. Each First Letter was sent in the name of one of MPHJ’s various subsidiaries, and 

appeared on letterhead featuring the name of that subsidiary, with eighty-one different subsidiary 

names used over the length of the campaign.  The eighty-one subsidiary names used in 

Defendants’ campaign were AllLed, LLC; AbsMea, LLC; AccNum, LLC; AllOrd, LLC; 

AdzPro, LLC; ArdSan, LLC; ArdTec, LLC; AppVal, LLC; BavLin, LLC; BarMas, LLC; 

BetNam, LLC; BilOlt, LLC; BriPol, LLC; BruSed, LLC; BosTra, LLC; BunVic, LLC; CalLad, 

LLC; CapMat, LLC; CalNeb, LLC; CleOrv, LLC; ChaPac, LLC; CelSta, LLC; ComTim, LLC; 

CraVar, LLC; DelLog, LLC; DayMas, LLC; DesNot, LLC; DreOcc, LLC; DucPla, LLC; 
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DriSud, LLC; DraTom, LLC; DolVol, LLC; EliLand, LLC; ElaMon, LLC; EntNil, LLC; 

EleOde, LLC; EliPut, LLC; EstSto, LLC; EtaTri, LLC; EquiVas, LLC; FasLan, LLC; FraMor, 

LLC; FolNer, LLC; FenObe, LLC; FanPar, LLC; FreSta, LLC; FinTas, LLC; FloVis, LLC; 

GreLea, LLC; GraMet, LLC; GosNel, LLC; GanOrb, LLC; GanPan, LLC; GamSta, LLC; 

GenTro, LLC; GimVea, LLC; HunLos, LLC; HanMea, LLC; HarNol, LLC; HadOpp, LLC; 

HeaPle, LLC; HorSan, LLC; HurTom, LLC; HasVen, LLC; InnLost, LLC; IsaMai, LLC; 

InaNur, LLC; IndOrp, LLC; IntPar, LLC; InkSen, LLC; IntTen, LLC; IbiVen, LLC; JusLem, 

LLC; JonMor, LLC; JitNom, LLC; JanOrt, LLC; JudPar, LLC; JunSpe, LLC; JabTre, LLC; 

JamVor, LLC; and Networked Scanning Solutions, LLC. 

 22. The First Letters sent from September 2012 through February 2013 do not make 

any mention of MPHJ.  The First Letters sent after February 2013 identify MPHJ as the owner 

of the patents discussed in the First Letter, but do not disclose that the entity identified as the 

sender is a subsidiary of MPHJ.   

 23. Each First Letter states that the entity identified as the sender is the licensing 

agent for the MPHJ Portfolio, that the recipient small business is likely infringing the patents in 

the MPHJ Portfolio, and that the recipient small business thus likely needs to buy a license for 

the MPHJ Portfolio at a price of either $1,000 or $1,200 per employee.   

 24. The First Letters represent that the recipient small businesses are likely infringing 

the MPHJ Portfolio by using common office equipment.  More specifically, the First Letters 

state, among other representations concerning the scope of the MPHJ Portfolio, that one or more 

patents in the MPHJ Portfolio covers claims that are “directed to a system having a digital 

copier/scanner/multifunction device with an interface to office equipment (or to the web) and 
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related software, for scanning or copying and transmitting images electronically to one or more 

destinations such as email, applications or other local files.”   

 25. Each of the First Letters sent to small businesses from September 2012 through 

February 2013 includes express or implied representations that substantial numbers of businesses 

had purchased licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio.  Specifically, those First Letters state, among 

other representations, that “we have had a positive response from the business community to our 

licensing program,” that “most businesses, upon being informed that they are infringing 

someone’s patent rights, are interested in operating lawfully and taking a license promptly,” and 

that “[m]any companies have responded to this licensing program in such a manner.”   

 26. The First Letters sent from September 2012 through February 2013 further state 

that the responses of “[m]any companies” had allowed the entity identified as the sender “to 

determine . . . a fair price for a license negotiated in good faith and without the need for court 

action.”  Some versions of those First Letters state that the price determined through the 

responses of “[m]any companies” was “a payment of $1,200 per employee.”  Other versions of 

those First Letters state that the price determined through the responses of “[m]any companies” 

was “a payment of $1,000 per employee.” 

 27. From September 2012 through February 2013, the Defendants sent to small 

businesses located in all fifty states approximately 9,081 First Letters that contain the 

representations concerning substantial sales of licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio identified in 

Paragraphs 25–26.  When the first 7,366 of those First Letters were sent, the Defendants had not 

sold any licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio through the Defendants’ nationwide campaign of 

letters.  When the next 1,077 of those First Letters were sent, the Defendants had sold a license 
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for the MPHJ Portfolio to only one of the 7,366 small businesses that had, at that time, been sent 

a First Letter.  When the final 638 of those First Letters were sent, the Defendants had sold a 

license to the MPHJ Portfolio to only two of the 8,443 small businesses that had, at that time, 

been sent a First Letter. 

 28. Beginning in March 2013, the approximately 7,384 remaining First Letters sent to 

small businesses no longer included the representations concerning substantial sales of licenses 

for the MPHJ Portfolio identified in in Paragraphs 25–26.  Over the entire course of the 

Defendants’ campaign, the Defendants sold a license to the MPHJ Portfolio to a total of 

seventeen of the approximately 16,465 small businesses that had been sent a First Letter. 

 29. The second of the three letters (“Second Letter”) involved in the Defendants’ 

nationwide campaign to promote and sell licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio was sent to 

approximately 10,265 of the small businesses located in all fifty states and the District of 

Columbia that had been sent the First Letter.  Over the course of the campaign, the Defendants 

used different versions of the Second Letter that involved a core of shared text.  Each version of 

the Second Letter was sent to hundreds or thousands of small businesses nationwide.  One such 

Second Letter, redacted to remove name and address of the recipient, is attached as Exhibit B.    

 30. Each Second Letter was sent in the name of Farney Daniels and appeared on 

Farney Daniels letterhead.  The signature block of each Second Letter contains the name of one 

of two Farney Daniels attorneys:  Maeghan Whitehead or Rob Kiddie.  The Second Letters do 

not include the telephone number or e-mail address for Meaghan Whitehead, Rob Kiddie, 

Defendant Farney, or any other Farney Daniels attorney, nor do they include the main telephone 

number for the Farney Daniels firm.  Instead, the only telephone number listed in the Second 
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Letters is one of two numbers for a call center where callers could leave a message.  In 

numerous instances, possibly all instances, messages left at the telephone number listed on the 

Second Letter were returned by Defendant Rust personally or by other individuals working for or 

on behalf of MPHJ, rather than by a Farney Daniels attorney or by Farney Daniels staff. 

 31. Each Second Letter states that, because there has been no response to the First 

Letter, the matter has been referred to Farney Daniels.  Each Second Letter identifies Farney 

Daniels’s client by one of the eighty-one different subsidiary names that had been used in the 

First Letters.  Each Second Letter states that “[w]hile our representation of [that subsidiary’s 

name] can involve litigation, it is our client’s preference here that we first make all reasonable 

efforts to reach agreement on a license.” 

 32. The third of the three letters (“Third Letter”) involved in the Defendants’ 

nationwide campaign to promote and sell licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio was sent to 

approximately 4,870 of the small businesses located in all fifty states and the District of 

Columbia that had been sent the First Letter.  Over the course of the campaign, the Defendants 

used different versions of the Third Letter that involved a core of shared text.  One such Third 

Letter, redacted to remove the name and address of the recipient, is attached as Exhibit C.     

 33. Like the Second Letter, each Third Letter was sent in the name of Farney Daniels 

and appeared on Farney Daniels letterhead.  The signature block of each Third Letter contains 

the name of one of two Farney Daniels attorneys:  Maeghan Whitehead or Rob Kiddie.  The 

Third Letters do not include the telephone number or e-mail address for Meaghan Whitehead, 

Rob Kiddie, Defendant Farney, or any other Farney Daniels attorney, nor do they include the 

main telephone number for the Farney Daniels firm.  Instead, the only telephone number listed 
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in the Third Letters is for a call center where callers could leave a message.  In numerous 

instances, possibly all instances, messages left at the telephone number listed on the Third Letter 

were returned by Defendant Rust personally or by other individuals working for or on behalf of 

MPHJ, rather than by a Farney Daniels attorney or by Farney Daniels staff. 

 34. Each of the Third Letters sent to small businesses includes express or implied 

representations that the Defendants intend to and will initiate legal action for patent infringement 

against letter recipients that do not respond to the Defendants’ letters, and that such legal action 

is imminent.  Specifically, the Third Letters state, among other representations, that “[i]f we do 

not hear from you within two weeks from the date of this letter, our client will be forced to file a 

Complaint against you for patent infringement in Federal District Court where it will pursue all 

of the remedies and royalties to which it is entitled.”  The Third Letter further states that “we 

must hear from you within two weeks of the date of this letter” (emphasis in original) and that 

“litigation will ensue otherwise.” 

 35. Each of the Third Letters sent to a small business was accompanied by a 

Complaint, typically nine pages in length, that alleges a cause of action for patent infringement 

against that small business.  Each Complaint is captioned for the federal judicial district 

corresponding with the small business’s mailing address.  Because Third Letters were sent to 

small businesses located in all fifty states and the District of Columbia, the Complaints 

accompanying the Third Letters are respectively captioned for federal judicial districts located in 

all fifty states and the District of Columbia. 
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 36. The signature block of the Complaints accompanying the Third Letters includes 

the name and signature of one of two Farney Daniels attorneys, Meaghan Whitehead or Rob 

Kiddie, or, in a minority of the Complaints, includes no attorney name or signature. 

 37. Approximately 4,870 Third Letters were sent to small businesses nationwide 

beginning in December 2012 and continuing through May 2013.  Approximately 4,701 of the 

Third Letters were sent on one of six days:  December 6, 2012; January 22, 2013; February 8, 

2013; February 20, 2013; April 1, 2013; and May 13, 2013.  On each of those days, at least 

several hundred Third Letters were sent to small businesses nationwide.  For example, on 

April 1, 2013, approximately 1,718 Third Letters threatening imminent legal action for patent 

infringement, accompanied by a Complaint, were sent to small businesses located in forty-nine 

states. 

 38. At the time the Third Letters and accompanying Complaints were sent, the 

Defendants did not intend to initiate legal actions for infringement of the MPHJ Portfolio against 

small businesses that did not respond to the Defendants’ letters. 

 39. From the beginning of their campaign through November 18, 2013, the 

Defendants had not initiated any legal actions for infringement against any of the approximately 

4,870 small businesses that were sent the Third Letters and accompanying Complaints.  On 

November 19, 2013, a complaint alleging infringement of two of the MPHJ Portfolio patents was 

filed in the Eastern District of Texas with MPHJ and its subsidiary Networked Scanning 

Solutions, LLC, identified as the plaintiffs. 
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VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT 

 40. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits “unfair or deceptive acts 

or practices in or affecting commerce.” 

 41. Misrepresentations or deceptive omissions of material fact constitute deceptive 

acts of practices prohibited by Section 5(a) of the FTC Act. 

Count I 

 42. In numerous instances in connection with the promotion, offering for sale, and 

sale of licenses relating to U.S. patents, the Defendants have represented, directly or indirectly, 

expressly or by implication, that they intend to and will initiate legal action for patent 

infringement against small businesses that do not respond to the Defendants’ letters, and that 

such legal action is imminent. 

 43. In truth and in fact, in numerous instances, Defendants did not intend to and did 

not initiate legal action for patent infringement against small businesses that do not respond to 

the Defendants’ letters. 

 44. Therefore, Defendants’ representation as set forth in Paragraph 42 of this 

Complaint is false or misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in or affecting 

commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

Count II 

 45. In numerous instances in connection with the promotion, offering for sale, and 

sale of licenses relating to U.S. patents, the Defendants have represented, directly or indirectly, 

expressly or by implication, that substantial numbers of businesses who had received the 

Defendants’ letters had purchased licenses for the MPHJ Portfolio. 
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 46. In truth and in fact, at the time of the representations, substantial numbers of 

businesses who had received the Defendants’ letters had not purchased patent licenses for the 

MPHJ Portfolio. 

 47. Therefore, the Defendants’ representation as set forth in Paragraph 45 of this 

Complaint is false or misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in or affecting 

commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

 48. Consumers have suffered substantial injury as a result of Defendants’ violations 

of the FTC Act.  In addition, Defendants have been unjustly enriched as a result of their 

unlawful acts or practices.  Absent injunctive relief by this Court, Defendants are likely to 

continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the public interest.   

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

 49. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations  

of any provision of law enforced by the FTC.  The Court, in the exercise of its equitable 

jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief, including rescission or reformation of contracts, 

restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, to prevent and 

remedy any violation of any provision of law enforced by the FTC. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 Wherefore, Plaintiff FTC, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), 

and the Court’s own equitable powers, requests that the Court: 
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 A. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act by 

Defendants; 

 B. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers 

resulting from Defendants’ violations of the FTC Act, including but not limited to, rescission or 

reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of 

ill-gotten monies; 

 C. Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and 

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper. 

      Respectfully submitted, 
 
      Jonathan E. Nuechterlein 
      General Counsel 
 
 
[DATE] , 2014                                                      
      Daniel O. Hanks 
      Federal Trade Commission 
      600 Pennsylvania Ave NW 
      Washington, DC  20580  
      (202) 326-2472 
      dhanks@ftc.gov 
       
      Attorney for Plaintiff 
      FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

Case 6:14-cv-00011-WSS   Document 1-24   Filed 01/13/14   Page 16 of 35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
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EXHIBIT C 
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